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Name: Cherry Grove

Planning Area/Site Number: 28/9 3+ M=NCPPC Atlas Reference: Map 17

Coordinate D-2
Address: 17530 New Hampshire Avenue

Ashton, Md.
Classification Summary
Category__ building Previous Survey Recording MNCPPC
Ownership rivate Title and Date: Historic Sites Inventory
Public Acquisition /A 1976
Status occupled
Accessible_ no Federal State__x County x Local
Present use_agriculture/private
residence
Date: ¢. 1773 7. Original Owner: Richard Thomas
Apparent Condition
8. good b, altered c.___original site

Deseription: Built in 1773, the original house consisted of a four bay

by two bay, two and a half story structure, constructed of locally fired
brick laid up in flemish bond, and facing northeast. To the southeast there
is a two bay by two bay one and a half story dependency now connected by a
one bay section to the original structure. There are six-over-six double-
hung windows set into flat arches. There are three gabled six-over-six
dormer windows on the northeast and southwest elevations of the kitchen
dependency. The original house and kitchen dependencies have gable roofs
with slate tile shingles. :

Significance: This fine house 1s assoclated with distinguished County
families. Part of one of the early tracts of land patented in the eastern
County, "Snowden's Manor Enlarged," a log house may have been built on
this property around 1728 by John Thomas, son-in-law of Richard Snowden.
John's son Richard recelved Snowden's Manor Enlarged and bullt the present
Cherry Grove about 1773 to replace the original log house which was
destroyed by fire in 1772. Richard Thomas became one of the largest
landowners in the County. He was an active Revolutionary representing
lower Frederick County in the Maryland Convention. At his death in 1806,
his son William acquired Cherry Grove, and in 1865 William's son Samuel
and his wife inherited the property. It was sold out of the famlly in
1927. Roger and Emily Farquhar lived there in the 1930s and operated

a restaurant =- 0ld Colonial Kitchen. They sold it in 1942. The present
owners, Mr, and Mrs, George H. Riggs, Jr. have held it since 1945,
restoring the house to its original 18th century character.

Candy Reed - Arch., Description
Researcher and date researched: Geraldine Berkman T7/79

Compiler: Gail Rothrock 13. Date Compiled: 10/79 1%. Designation
Approval
15. Acreage: 30 acres
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
X _GooD _.RUINS X ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

. This elegant brick Georgian-style house sits on a ridge facing north-
€8ST.

Built on fieldstone foundations, the original house consisted of a four
bay by two bay, two and a half story structure, constructed of locally fired
brick laid up in Flemish bond. The steep A-roof is accented by graceful
chimneystacks which rise flush with the north and south end walls. This
section has a rounded brick water table and, between the first and second
stories, a distinctive brick belt course. doutheast of this structure, and
connected by a narrow passageway, is the two bay by two bay, one-and-a-half
story kitchen dependency constructed of locally fired brick laid up in
common bond., This narrow passageway was enclosed and a window installed
sometime later, :

The shed roofed porch on the main house was removed by the present
owners. There is a simple brick stoop leading to the second bay from the
north corner. There is an eight-paneled wooden door supported by heavy
strap hinges and surmounted by a transom light. On the southeast elevation
there is a six~paneled wooden door. There are six-over-six double-hung
windows throughout the house, although those on the upper level are almost
half the size of those on the ground floor. One original nine-over-nine
window remains on the southwest elevation. The first story flat arches a..
narrower than the existing windows. A large multi-paned, three-sided, one-
story bay window was installed on the southwest elevation. There are two
small four-light casement windows in the northwest and southeast gable ends.
There are three gabled, six-over-six dormer windows set into the kitchen
roof on the northeast and southwest elevations.

The main house and kitchen have separate gable roofs covered by slate
tiles. There is a massive interior and fieldstone chimney base with a brick
chimney stack at the southeast elevation of the kitchen wing., In addition :
there are two brick interior end chimneys at the southeast and northwest
elevations of the main house. There is a basement under the main house, but
only a crawl space under the kitchen wing.

Entering the house from the northeast (front) door, one enters into a
large hall, Against the northwest exterior wall there {s a two run closed
string stairway with turned balusters, a sycamore handrail and a Jacobean
newel post. West of the hall is the library, to the south is the dining
room and to the southeast is the parlor. Southeast of the main house, the "
0ld kitchen (with large fireplace and crane) is now used as a sitting room.
Northwest of this room is a modern kitchen wing. To the northwest of the
modern kitchen is a glass enclosed porch. Floors throughout the house are
random width longleaf North Carolina pine with no subflooring. The parlor,
library and dining rooms all have full-field wooden paneling at the exterior
end walls behind the fireplaces. This paneling includes built-in cabinets.
Fireplace mantle pieces are all molded and each fireplace (except the
kitchen's) has a soap stone hearth. The remainder of the walls and ceilires
are plaster over lath., Every door is a different heightj all the doors L 2
six wooden panels. They are supported in the door frames by HH and HL :
foliated hinges. Doors have rimlocks and brass knobs.

(Continued on Attachment Sheet A)
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Cherry Grove
The southwest elevation has been altered by the new kitchen wing
and porch additions. At the second story, opening onto these wings,

there are two French windows. The flat roof of the addition has a
simple wooden railing at the outer edges.
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3 SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

__PREHISTORIC  —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC ~ _COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  .._RELIGION
__1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
15001599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS — LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —MILITARY —_SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
X 1700-1799 _ART __ENGINEERING __MusIC __THEATER
__1800-1899 __COMMERCE X_EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY — TRANSPORTATION
—1900- __COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY X_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

__INVENTION '
SPECIFIC DATES 1773 ‘ BUILDER/ARCHITECT Richard Thomas?

. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Local and family tradition maintains that the present Cherry Grove
house replaced a log house which John Thomas built for himself and hii
bride, Elizabeth Snowden, around 1728 or 1729. John married in 1727,
and was well established in the Ashton area at least as early as the 1740s,
Thomas' father-in-law was Richard Snowden, who in 1715 acquired "Snowden's
Manor", one of the first tracts of land patented in the area., Snowden
acquired more 1a§d, and in 1745 resurveyed the 9,265 acre "Snowden's
Manor Enlarged". He apparently never lived in %his part of Maryland.
However, his three sons-in-law, James Brooke,_ Samuel Thomas and John Thomas,

~were among the first settlers {n this region.3

In 1747 Richard Snowden deeded to John Thogas 549 acres, "part of a
tract of land called Snowden's Manor Inlarged",* probably the land upon
which John was then living. With his brother-in-law, James Brooke, John
built a watermill on the nearbﬁ H%wlings River., The mill was referred to
in John's will, probated in 1749.

The will does not mention his oldest son Richard, or "Snowden's Manor
Enlarged". Probably Richard's portion had already been given him: the
Frederick County Debt Books for 1753 and 1755 list for "Mr. John Thomas's
Heirs" a 549 acge tract and a 1,480 acre tractj in 1755 a 318 acre property
is also listed. By 1761, the estate having apparently been divided,
Richard appears in the Debt Book as the owner of the 9 acre "Snowden's
Manor",7 Throughout the rest of his life Richard retained this tract
(designated in the records either as "Snowden's Manor" or "Snowden's

,‘Enlar%ed") ugon which his home, Cherry Grove, stood.
n the 1783 Montgomery County Tax List tne tract "Snowden's Manor
Enlarged" includes the "hull of a brigk house 32 x 38, 1 framed barn and
~ tobacco house and sundry log houses."© From the dimensions given, the
"hull of a brick house" is Cherry Grove. According to tradition, the
original house was destroyed by fire in 1772 and Richard built the present
brick house in its steadj perhaps it remained unfinished in 1783,

Richard Thomas enlarged his landholdings to become one of the chief
landowners in Montgomery County. He was an active Revolutionary, for-
feiting for this period his membership in the Society of Friends. In
1774 he was among those elected at the Hungerford Tavern meeting to repre-

_sent Lower Frederick Cosnty in the Maryland Convention held in response to
1e "Intolerable Acts", In 1788 he was electe% as a Federalist to the
maryland Convention to ratify the Constitution. 0

(Continued on Attachment Sheet B)

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Cherry Grove

He died in 1806, his will providing for the manumission of his
112 slaves. Richard's will provided for the'equi division of his
estate between,his two sons Richard and William, William acquired
Cherry Grove, 3"and resided there the remainder of his life. Upon
his widow's death in 1865, their son Samuel P, Thomas inherited the
property. Samuel died in 1898,, and his widow Elizabeth retained Cherry
Grove until her digth in 1909.14 It then passed to his grandnephew
Samuel P. Thomas, who lived there until 1927. In that yea{'Samuel

sold the estate to Frank L. Hewitt and Frederick N, Z}Blman, 6 who
sold it to Emily Jean Adams (later Farquhar) in 1928.

During the 1930's Roger and Emily Farquhar operated a restaurant--
The 0l1d Colonial Kitchen-~in the house. Members of Congress and other
pelitical figures involved with the Roosevelt administration were
frequent guests. v 18

The Farquhars sold Cherry Grove in 1942 to David A. Shober, who
resold it to the present owners in 1945, Mr, and Mrs. Riggs, both
architects, have over the years restored the house to its original
18th-century style.

FOOTNOTES ¢

1. Minutes, Cliffs Monthly Meeting of the Society of Friends, 1677-1771.,
Micro Reel M605, Rockville Library. May 14, 1727,

2. Patent, BY & G8 No. 4/577 (1745); Maryland Hall of Records.
3. Cook, William G., Montpelier and the Snowden Family, p. 224,
4, Prince Georges County Land Records, BB/382 (February 20, 1747).
5 ?rede§ick County Wills, A/15, Frederick County 1749 (November 24, 1749)
PTO. ).
6. Frederick County Debt Book, 1753, p. 43 1755, p. 6.
7. Ibid., 1761, Richard Thomas.
8. Montgomery County Tax List, 1783,
9. MacMaster, Richard K. and Ray Eldon Hiebert, A Grateful Remembrance,
pe 31,
10, Ibid., p. 76.

11. Montgomery County Wills, E/340., Also Estate Inventories, 1807,
January 5, 1807. December 15, 1806 (pro.).

12, Ibid.
13. Land Records of Montgomery County, Md. 0/368 (November 14, 1809).
14, Annals of Sandy Spring, V. 4, p. 25.

15. Montgomery County Wills, GCD12/120, December 27, 1898 (pro).
16. Land Records, Op. Cit., 422/62 (March 5, 1927).

17. Ibid., 458/471 (March 3, 1928),
18, Ibid., 877/209 (April 29, 1942),
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 30 acres (aDPI'OXimatelY)

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The Riggs property is bounded on the northeast by New Hampshire Avenue,
on the east and south by F.E. Mars, and on the west and north by M.A,

and L.C, Hogan and E. L. and M.J. Riggs, respectively.
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turbances of the Civil War. A few soldiers were
buried on the place, and gome animals were
stolen. Indian burial grounds, also, have been
located on the property. J

The house is of red brick manufactured on
the place with the familiar Flemish bond ap-
pearing in the front walls, In the main section
you enter a large double parlor with fireplaces
in each side. In the wing to the right of this,
there are a dining room, a kitchen and a pantry,

Cherry

]

E-10

NO. 16

Tidewater half-a-mile sonth of Ashton on
Route 29 and 12 miles north of the
District of Columbia line, there has stood for
188 years one of the finest Colonial brick houses
in western Maryland. The Cherry Grove house
was built in 1773, the year of the Boston ‘‘Tea

ECATED on Parr’s Ridge 525 feet above

ORIGINALLY 1720  JOHN THOMAS BURNED AND MAIN HOUSE REBUILT RY
RICHARD THOMAS

T HiSIDey OF MO Co. ~FRequs R
2~

M:2%-9

Historic Monteomery County, MaryLanp

On the second floor are four bedrooms and a
bath. The date of the house and the name of
the builder, as usual, is unknown, but it was
probably built by the elder Charles Greenhury
Grifith sometime after 1800, As he died in
18G4, it must have heen considerably before the
Civil War, and details indiento construetion
early in the nineteenth century. It had a e
tachoed kitehen with o hreozowny whoere the hay
window is now loented,

Grove

& 9

1773  BRICK
Party,”’ to replace a log house built on the same
site in 1729 which had burned in 1772.

The brick house at Cherry Grove was one of
four built by Richard Thomas, (Marse Dicky).
It was his own home. The other three were
Norwood, Mt. Airy, and Woodlawn. The Cherry
Grove property remained in the hands of the

& ‘S cee-cmn
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Thomas family for two hundred years from
It was on parts of Snowden’s
Addition to his Manor, a grant of 9,265 acres
to Richard Snowden I11 in 1743 and on part of
Snowden’s Manor a grant of 1,000 acres in 1715.
Richard Thomas also acquired about 2,500 acres
by inheritance from his father, John Thomas.
The latter married Elizabeth Snowden, a daugh-
ter of Richard Snowden 111

The heauty and desirability of the site of this
fine house eauses one to marvel that the pioneer
settler in the wilderness was able to make such
a wise choice for his habitation. The house sits
on a ridge, the rain from one side of the roof of
the house flowing into the Potomac and from
the other side into the Patuxent River, although
at this point the two rivers are twenty miles
apart, Here are pleasing views to the north for
ifteen miles and to the south for live miles,
which are delightful features of the place. The
pioneer settler did not overlook the guality of
the soil. It is Chester loam, the most desirable
in the state for gencral farming, for grains,
grasses, fruits and most vegetables, Blue grass
spreads naturally.

After their marriage John Thomas and Iiliza-

heth Snowden huilt their log house here in 1729,

which was nearly duplicated in the Charley For-
est house huilt the yvear before by James Brooke
and Deborah (Snowden) Brooke. Klizabeth and
Deborah were both danghters of Richard Snow-
den 111, the owner of extensive lands. Richard
Thomas who figured so notably in local history
was born in 1728,

Richard Thomas was very active in the excit-
ing days just prior to the Revolutionary War.
He was one of the committee which met at Hun-
gerford’s Tavern in what is now Rockville in
June, 1774, which defied the Crown and de-
manded that all eommerce with the Mother
Country be broken off unless the Stamp Act be
repealed. Ie took part in a similar meeting at
Frederick Court House in November, 1774, when
he was appointed to carry into execution the
resolves of the Continental Congress. In addi-
tion to these public services he is eredited with
heing the owner of the only pair of high hoots in
the communty, which he often loaned to neigh-
bors, when they had to make **the hazardous
trip”* to Annapolis.

Richard Thomas marrvied Sarah Coale about
1750, and upon his death the large plantation
passed to his son, William, who married Martha

Patrick. William was born in December, 1771,
and family tradition states that when the old
Cherry Grove house was in flames, the baby
William was bundled up in blankets and put to
sleep on the Thomas settee, at a safe place on
the lawn. "This beautiful family piece, a rare
antique made by the famous Quaker cabinet
maker, Anthony Pouliney, is now a prized piece
of furniture in Stratford, the Robert K. Lee
homestead in Virginia. '

The will of Richard Thomas, probated in De-
cember, 1806, provided that 112 slaves be for-
ever free when all males were over twenty-one
yvears and all females over eighteen years of
age. There was a long line of slave eabins run-
ning out from the rear of the Cherry Grove
house. Oune old slave named Abe, belonging to
William and Martha P. Thomas, was a skilled
cooper, and what was no doubt his “*adze’ was
dug up on the place in 1932 and is a souvenir
retained in the house. Old Abe lived as a pen-
sioner well cared for by the family until 1911,

1lustrating the wild conditions existing in the
early days, it is reported that a wildcat climbed
into a second story window and was killed in
one of the bedrooms. No incidents during the
War between the States disturbed the serenity
of the old Quaker home. The only thing which
seemed fo involve the War period was noted by
the author when he lived on the farm. In one
row in the family apple orchard there were two
“Rebel’’ apple trees, and in the opposite row a
“Northern Spy*’ apple tree!

Photo by Franees Bewjamin Johnston

COLONIAL KITUHEN, REMNANT OF ORIGINAL
HOUSE OF 1728
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After the death of William and Martha
Thomas, the old home passed by inheritance to
Samuel P. Thomas, Sr., and his wife Elizabeth
(Porter) Thomas, quiet, kindly Friends greatly
admired and beloved by the community. He died
in December, 1898, at the age of 83, and Kliza-
~ beth died, age 89, in December, 1909. They had
no children and the will of Samuel, Sr., provided
that Cherry Grove should go to Samuel P.
Thomas, a nephew and namesake, after the
death of Elizabeth.
. Samuel P. Thomas, the heir, born in 1885,

married Miriam Snowden who lived at Ingle-
side, an adjoining farm, in April, 1911, and they
went at once to live at Cherry Grove, Which'was
then beautifully furnished with family antiques.
This wedding by Friends ceremony at the home

of the bride, in the presence of a large company

of friends and relatives, caused some of those
present to recall that nearly two centuries be-
fore, John Thomas married Elizabeth Snowden
and went to live at Cherry Grove. Samuel was
a graduate of the University of Maryland, was
a skilled pianist, and for a time Master of Olney
- Grange. Miriam was a talented violinist. There
is one son of this union living in 1961, Edward,
who 1s employed by the Washington Suburban
Sanitary Commission and is building a modern
home on the Ashton-Colesville Road just across
from Ingleside, the childhood home of his
mother,
drowned in the far west some years ago. Samuel
and Miriam were divorced and his second wife
was Miss  Evelyn Fulks,
secondly James H. Lampton and she died in
November 1950. Samuel P. Thomas died June
14, 1953.

In 1926 the historie old house was closed, pass-
ing from the Thomas family, and the family
heirlooms were sold, some of them bringing
higher prices than had up to that time been
known locally.

In 1928 Cherry Grove with thirty acres of
land was purchased by Tmily J. and Roger B.
Farquhar, and the house was fully modernized,
redecorated and put in excellent condition. The
lawns were beautified with scores of box bushes,
flowers and shrubbery.

Cherry Grove was known far and wide for
hospitality. One couple came for a short visit
and stayed for many vears. Richard Thomas’s
daughter Sarah who married Bernard Gilpin
stayed until her fourth child was born; then her

Miriam. - The other son, Kvan, was

Miriam married

father built Mt. Airy for the couple. Some people
said ‘‘the front door at Cherry Grove opened
itself.”” The mistress of the house once told the
author, ‘‘the front door is never locked,”” and
for years this seemed to be true. The place had
an atmosphere of dignity which forbade dis-
turbance by trespassers. Truly the *'Latch
string was always out’ at Cherry Grove in
those days.

Yor a few years after 1928, the owners oper-
ated the charming old home as 'a fashionable
dining place. Guests from many parts of the
country and from abroad came to sce the atmos-
phere of Colonial days recaptured. Appro-
priately furnished with many period antiques,
the charm of the old house in winter, when five or
six fires would be blazing in the huge fireplaces,
was very appealing. No less welcome on hot
summer days was a seat on the shady lawn be-
neath giant trees, invariably swept by cool
breezes, with views of distant houses, enveloped
in a blue haze ten or twelve miles away.

Many notable names appear in the guest hook
of those days. Frequent diners were members
of the President’s Cabinet, Justices of the

‘Supreme Court, Foreign Diplomats, Military
‘leaders, lawyers, artists, architeets, newspaper

publishers, and ““brain trusters’’ galore. Many
Washington society leaders, with a blg ‘s
entertained in the home.

One memorable Wathermg was a dinner party
given by the late U.S. Senator David 1. Walsh
of Massachusetts in January, 1929. It was a
farewell party for Senator Peter Goelet Gerry
of Rhode Island, who had been defeated for re-
election in November, 1928, Eight United States
Senators, all Democrats, sat down to a table
formed in the shape of a ““U,’” upon which were
placed two roast turkeys, two baked home-cured
Maryland hams, and all the concomitants of a
bountiful feast. The Scnators did the carving
themselves, and as was to be expected, added
anecdotes and repartee to the gayety of the
evening. ‘‘Hospitality sitting with gladness.”’

Aside from the enjoyment of food and the
sociability, this was an oceasion to discuss wavs
and means of turning the political tide from the
Republicans who had won the 1928 Presidential
clection with The Hon. Herbert Hoover. This
party of Senator Walsh’s might reasonably be
called, ““anticipation of the New Deal,” for
Franklin Roosevelt won the next election in
1932, and that slogan ‘““new deal’’ was broadeast

o
b
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around the world. Senator Ashurst is the only

_one of the eight Senators who attended Senator

Walsh’s party at Cherry Grove in 1929 surviv-
ing in 1961, Ile is 87 years of age. According to
a September press account, Senator Ashurst has
agreed to take part in the movie ** Advise and
Consent’” being filmed in Washington. He will
pose as a U.S. Senator!!!!! Senator Ashurst
was the first U.S. Senator from Arizona and
served in the Senate from 1912 until 1941.

Another honored guest of Senator Walsh on
that night in 1929 was William F. Prettyman,
who in 1961 is dean of the Montgomery County
Bar, and looks back on many active years of
legal laurels in the law, where his family has
been distinguished for generations.

The house at Cherry Grove requires more
than a ecasual description. It is of red brick,
made in a nearby pit, laid up in Flemish hond
by Knglish bricklayers imported for their skill.
There is a rounded water table thirty inches
above the ground, and the foundations are of
rough stone. The main seetion is thirty-cight
feet in frout, thirty-three feet wide. Ceilings on
the first floor are ten feet high and on the second
floor seven feet high. The outside walls are

thirteen inches thick on the first floor and nine.,
sinches thick on the second floor. There ig a full
attie, and a full cellar under the main part only.

In rescarch by experts for the restoration of
Williamsburg, and also for Wakeficld, it was
reported that a few bricks at first were brought
from Fngland, but with **the fine native clays
availuble’ it was not long before brickmakers

STAIRWAY, CHERRY GROVE

were brought to America, and importation
ceased. We are quite certain that is what
“Marsy Dicky’ did, when building the houses
eredited to his skill.

The parlor, library and dining room all have
their ends pancled to the ceiling around large
fireplaces which have soapstone hearths and
backs. This paneling is skillfully executed and
perfectly preserved. Many six-paneled doors
have the Colonial “HH* and “HL’’ hinges
“foliated’’ and the massive original front and
library doors have strap or “‘barn-door hinges'’
their full width.

The front hall, in the right-hand part of the
main scetion, has a wide stairway with antique
spindles and sycamore handrail. On the left is
the parlor and behind the hall is the library.
Behind the parlor is the dining room, and behind
that in the wing is a modern kitchen. Most of
the floors are of longleaf North Carolina pine in
good condition,

In the east or left-hand end of the lower wing,

the feature room of the house, the Old Clolonial
kitchen is located. Its fiveplace, a remnant of
the original log house—with bake oven door
still in the wall—is eight feet wide, five feet
high, and three feet deep with a large erane still
in use. This wing orviginally had a hip roof,
which was blown off in a storm in 1896 and was
replaced by a flat tin voof. In 1932 the owners
removed this unsightly and incongruous feature,
and reconstructed the plain hip roof with three
dormers. The marks of the original roof were
visible on the gable end and were followed, thus
restoring the original Colonial appearance of
the liouse. There are five hedrooms on the
second floor, and two modern baths have been
added.

In 1942 Cherey Grove, restored to its original
beauty and charm, was sold by the Farquhars
to David A. Shober who in three years re-sold
to George . Riggs, a Washington architect, the
owner in 1961, Mr. Riggs is a dirveet descendent
of Hon. lenry Griftith I, the great leader of the
Revolutionary men in 1774, who met at Hunger-
fords Tavein, and defied the British FEmpire.
ITenrey’s daughter Ruth, married Amon Riegs,
and thus the descent is made clear to My, George
I Riggs ol Cherry Grove. Mes. George Riggs’
maiden nime was Bugdénie Le Merle, They have
three sons as follows: Eugene LeMerle Riggs,
whose wife was Mary Jane Dridges of Florida.
They have two boys. Ravenel La Barre Riggs,
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a student in architecture at Tulane University,
New Orleans. The youngest son, Barrymore

DuVal Riggs 11, was born at Cherry Grove and’

is a student at Sherwood, November 16, 1961,

The death of ““Mr. Sam’’ Rayburn, October 5,

1961, caunses the author to vividly reeall a visit
he made to Cherry Grove in the Spring of 1928,

A rather shabby black antomobile drove into
the yard one forenoon. When the ““Host’’ at
the Inn met the car in the circle of the driveway,
two men emerged from the vehicle. The first
was Honorahle HMatton W. Summners, a former
judge from Texas, then a member of the ouse
of Representatives, whom the ITost know; then
a short, stout man alighted and was introdueced
as “Mr. Rayburn,” Clongressman from Texas,

With the Host’s desire to be hospitable, the
gentlemen were invited into the Cherry Grove
honse, but this invitation was declined and hoth

the visitors proceeded to sit down on the lawn
under the big ash tree, then standing near the

““0O1d Colonial Kitchen’ corner of the house,

There the three of us sat for half an hour asking
and answering questions about ‘‘farming prac-
tices and conditions in this area of Montgomery
County.”’

As our discussion was ending, Judge Sumners
asked ‘“We wonder if it would be possible to
obtain some good home-cooked food hear-
abonts 1" The IMost assured them that they had
“eome to just the right place.”’

A modest luncheon was served them on trays
on the lawn as T reeall, and they proeeeded on
their way . . . two ‘““horn farmers at heart,”
looking over Montgomery County “Old Homes "
and farms.

Mr. Rayburn had then heen in Congress sinee
1912, and was to go on and become elected

i Ad e oAl o oo AL
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Speaker 12 years later and to serve in that high
?ﬂ.; for 17 years, longer than any other Speaker
istory.
A great man, he climbed to great heights, yet
never lost the ““eommon touch,””

e c— - ——
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‘A grace, though melancholy, manly too,
molded his being; pensive, grave, serene.
O’er his habitual bearing and his mien,
unceasing pain, by patience tempered,
threw a shade of sweet austerity.”'

Henry Taylor

Chevy Chase

NO. 130

’ N THE grounds of the luxurious Chevy
8 A O Chase C'lub located on the southwest cor-
- ner of Connecticut Avenue and Brad-
ley Lane one-half mile north of Chevy Chase
" Cirele the house shown above stood for about
- a century-and-half until destroyed by fire
. shortly after World War I, about 1921 to 1922,
+  For more than a century it was the cherished
% home of the Bradley family who were persons of
©importance in the affairs of Montgomery
; County and Washington.

Bits of evidence and records pieced together
the author indicate that the frame house was
# “obably built before 1760, Traditions place it

1.9  THOMAS BELT CA, 1760-'65 FRAME

in the Pre-Revolutionary period, and certain
heavy hand-hewed timbers which withstood the
conflagration of 1922 are evidence supporting
very early construction. One of these timbers
is preserved in the newer frame house on the
site, and the original chimney is intact.

Where Western Avenue, which coincides with
the Maryland-District of Columbia boundary,
intersects Chevy Chase Circle a large boulder
has been placed by the Society of Colonial Wars.
Set into the stone is a bronze tablet as a me-
morial to ‘‘Colonel Joseph Belt, Maryland,
1680-1761 ; Patentee of Chevy Chase; Trustee of
the first free schools of Maryland; Member of
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